

SIXTY-SEVENTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Monday, January 30, 1978

The Senate met at 10:00 o'clock a.m. and was called to order by the President.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Rev. James Bjorge.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Anderson	Frederick	Knutson	Punfeerst	Strand
Ashbach	Gearty	Laufenburger	Renneke	Stumpf
Bang	Hanson	Lessard	Schaaf	Tennessee
Benedict	Hughes	Luther	Schmitz	Ueland, A.
Borden	Humphrey	McCutcheon	Schrom	Ulland, J.
Chenoweth	Johnson	Merriam	Setzepfandt	Vega
Chmielewski	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Sieloff	Wegener
Coleman	Keefe, S.	Nichols	Sikorski	Willet
Davies	Kinchner	Ogdahl	Sillers	
Dieterich	Kleinbaum	Penny	Solon	
Dunn	Knaak	Peterson	Spear	
Engler	Knoll	Pillsbury	Stokowski	

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

MEMBERS EXCUSED

Mr. Bernhagen, Mrs. Brataas, Messrs. Moe, Lewis, Olhoft, Olson and Mrs. Staples were excused from the Session of today.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Messrs. Merriam, Anderson, Sillers, Hughes and Dieterich introduced—

S. F. No. 1781: A bill for an act relating to education; school districts; providing for adjustments in certain school aid and tax levy procedures; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 6.62, Subdivision 1; 121.904, Subdivision 7; 124.212, by adding a subdivision; 126.12; 134.03; 275.125, Subdivisions 15, 16 and 18; Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Sections 275.07; 275.124; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 120.07 and 124.02.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1782: A bill for an act relating to education; allowing permanent fund transfers from the area vocational-technical schools general fund to the area vocational-technical schools capital expenditure fund; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 121.912, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1783: A bill for an act relating to education; changing the penalty for underlevies of the maximum maintenance levy allowable; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 275.125, Subdivision 2a.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1784: A bill for an act relating to education; teachers; correcting the teacher discharge or nonrenewal date for flexible school year programs; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 120.64, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Luther, Menning, Olhoft and Stokowski introduced—

S. F. No. 1785: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquor; increasing certain license fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 340.11, Subdivision 14; 340.113, Subdivision 2; 340.402; and 340.493, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Schmitz, Bernhagen, Stumpf, Knoll and Hughes introduced—

S. F. No. 1786: A bill for an act relating to veterans; requiring all counties to appoint a veterans service officer; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 197.60, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on General Legislation and Veterans Affairs.

Messrs. Penny, Nichols, Anderson, Gunderson and Sieloff introduced—

S. F. No. 1787: A bill for an act relating to the national guard; amending the state military code; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 192.06; 192.11; 192.12; 192.261, Subdivision 5; 192.32; 192.33; 192.34; and Chapter 192, by adding

a section; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 190.28; 192.09; and 192.10.

Referred to the Committee on General Legislation and Veterans Affairs.

Messrs. Lessard, Vega, Mrs. Staples, Messrs. Nelson and Knutson introduced—

S. F. No. 1788: A bill for an act relating to veterans; classification of records; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 197.603.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Gunderson, Penny, Nichols, Sikorski and Mrs. Knaak introduced—

S. F. No. 1789: A bill for an act relating to employments licensed by the state; architects, engineers and landscape architects; requiring knowledge of barrier free design to acquire license; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 326.10, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Gunderson, Nichols, Sikorski, Mrs. Knaak and Mr. Borden introduced—

S. F. No. 1790: A bill for an act relating to handicapped and disabled persons; requiring installation and use of wheelchair securement devices in vehicles used for transporting wheelchair users; providing for inspection of wheelchair securement devices; requiring other safety measures in vehicles used for transporting wheelchair users; authorizing the admissibility of certain evidence in litigation; providing penalties.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Stumpf, Willet, Dunn and Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1791: A bill for an act relating to local water and related land resources management; establishment, financing and termination of lake improvement districts; appropriating money in relation thereto; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 378.41, Subdivision 1; 378.42, Subdivision 1; 378.43, Subdivision 1; 378.44; 378.46; 378.47, Subdivision 1; 378.52, Subdivision 1; 378.55; and 378.56, Subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 378.31, Subdivision 11; 378.41, Subdivision 2; 378.45; 378.51, Subdivision 3; 378.53; and 378.54.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Borden introduced—

S. F. No. 1792: A bill for an act relating to the city of Brainerd; firemen's service pensions; amending Laws 1973, Chapter 170, Section 1.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Borden introduced—

S. F. No. 1793: A bill for an act relating to the city of Brainerd; service credit in the public employees police and fire fund for the fire chief therein.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Borden introduced—

S. F. No. 1794: A bill for an act relating to education; school districts; authorizing school districts to provide health and hospitalization or other coverage for its employees through self-insurance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 471.61, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Olhoft, Hanson, Setzepfandt and Bernhagen introduced—

S. F. No. 1795: A bill for an act relating to taxation; changing maximum size of homestead owned by family farm corporation or partnership for property tax purposes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 273.13, Subdivision 6a.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Perpich introduced—

S. F. No. 1796: A bill for an act relating to the city of Chisholm; police and firemen's relief associations; reversion of funds and bond of treasurer.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Johnson and Perpich introduced—

S. F. No. 1797: A bill for an act relating to public safety; requiring fencing of unused open pit mines; providing a penalty.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Nelson and Strand introduced—

S. F. No. 1798: A bill for an act relating to state employees; clarifying eligibility for life and health benefits; further defining

eligible employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 43.43, by adding a subdivision; and 43.44, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Pillsbury introduced—

S. F. No. 1799: A bill for an act relating to the city of Mound; firemen's service pensions; amending Laws 1973, Chapter 175, Section 1, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Keefe, J.; Mrs. Staples; Messrs. Knutson; Bernhagen and Ashbach introduced—

S. F. No. 1800: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; eligibility for general assistance; county of financial responsibility; residency requirements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 256D.05, Subdivision 1; and 256D.18, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Laufenburger, Penny and Purfeerst introduced—

S. F. No. 1801: A bill for an act relating to highway traffic regulation; concerning special use permits for vehicles; authorizing the collection of total cost of issuance and damages; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 169.86, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Laufenburger, Solon, Stokowski, Chenoweth and Mrs. Brataas introduced—

S. F. No. 1802: A bill for an act relating to drivers' licenses; providing that a Class C license is valid for operation of the rear portion of a midmount aerial ladder truck; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 171.02, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Mrs. Staples, Messrs. Hughes, Sillers, Davies and McCutcheon introduced—

S. F. No. 1803: A bill for an act relating to children; establishing a comprehensive child protective services program; prescribing duties of the commissioner of public welfare and local social service agencies; authorizing grants for experimental programs to encourage interagency cooperation; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Dieterich, Hanson, McCutcheon, Bernhagen and Davies introduced—

S. F. No. 1804: A bill for an act relating to courts; concerning the expungement of judicial commitment proceedings.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Schmitz introduced—

S. F. No. 1805: A bill for an act relating to courts; providing for the retirement pension of a judge of the county court of Carver county.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Knoll; Willet; Anderson; Ulland, J. and Keefe, S. introduced—

S. F. No. 1806: A bill for an act relating to housing; providing funds for housing programs for native Americans; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 462A.07, by adding a subdivision; 462A.21, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Messrs. Strand, Stokowski, Renneke, Ogdahl and Peterson introduced—

S. F. No. 1807: A bill for an act relating to retirement; clarifying various ambiguous retirement provisions; removing various obsolete gender references; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 352B.14, Subdivisions 3 and 4; 352B.26, Subdivisions 2 and 3; 352B.28; 352D.05, Subdivision 3; 423.37; 423.371, Subdivision 2; 423.377; 423.38; 423.381; 423.387; 423.48; 423.51; 423.52; 423.58; 423.802, Subdivision 2; 423.810, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 424.16; 424.17; 424.24; 424.29; 424.31; Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Sections 69.772, Subdivision 2; 352B.08, Subdivision 2; 422A.09, Subdivision 3; and 422A.33, Subdivision 3; Laws 1969, Chapter 1088, Section 4, Subdivision 4; and Laws 1977, Chapter 61, Section 5; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 423.22 to 423.36; and 425.01 to 425.09.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Strand, Stokowski, Renneke, Ogdahl and Peterson introduced—

S. F. No. 1808: A bill for an act relating to retirement; providing for biennial local police and paid fire fund actuarial valuations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 69.77, Subdivisions 1, 2 and by adding a subdivision; 69.773, Subdivision 2; 69.78; 356.20, Subdivision 2; 356.215, Subdivision 2 and 4; Chapter 356, by adding a section; Laws 1955, Chapter 75, Section 9, as added and Section 12, as amended; Laws 1959, Chapter 131, Section 10, Subdivision 1, as amended; Laws 1965, Chapter 446, Section 7, Subdivision 1; Laws 1965, Chapter 458, Section 3, Subdivision

2; Laws 1965, Chapter 498, Section 1, Subdivision 1; Laws 1967, Chapter 736, Section 11, Subdivision 1; Laws 1967, Chapter 775, Section 8; Laws 1967, Chapter 798, Section 1, Subdivisions 1 and 2; Laws 1969, Chapter 576, Section 1; Laws 1969, Chapter 641, Section 2, Subdivision 1; Laws 1971, Chapter 51, Section 9, and Section 10, Subdivisions 1 and 2; Laws 1971, Chapter 810, Section 7; Laws 1973, Chapter 587, Section 1; Laws 1975, Chapter 424, Sections 10 and 11; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 69.71; 69.72; 69.73; 69.74; 69.75; 69.76; 490.131; and Laws 1963, Chapter 643, Section 27.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Strand, Stokowski, Renneke, Ogdahl and Peterson introduced—

S. F. No. 1809: A bill for an act relating to retirement; providing for an exclusion from public pension coverage for those persons covered by certain federal public service employment programs in compliance with federal regulations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 69.29; 136.80, Subdivision 1; 352B.01, Subdivision 2; 353.64, by adding a subdivision; 354A.10; 423.23; 423.372; 423.43; 423.801, Subdivision 2; 424.03; Chapter 356, by adding a section; and Laws 1969, Chapter 950, Section 1; Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Sections 352.01, Subdivision 2B; 353.01, Subdivision 2b; 354.05, Subdivision 2; 422A.09, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Peterson, Mrs. Staples, Messrs. Vega, Knutson and Olhoff introduced—

S. F. No. 1810: A bill for an act relating to medical assistance; nursing home rates; modifying the definition of facility; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 256B.42, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Mr. Peterson, Mrs. Staples, Messrs. Vega, Knutson and Olhoff introduced—

S. F. No. 1811: A bill for an act relating to medical assistance; nursing home rates; providing a definition for fixtures; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 256B.42, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Peterson, Vega and Knutson introduced—

S. F. No. 1812: A bill for an act relating to medical assistance; nursing home rates; modifying provisions for determination of the investment allowance percentage; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 256B.45, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Vega, Solon, Benedict, Nichols and Nelson introduced—

S. F. No. 1813: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income tax; exempting public pensions; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 290.08, Subdivision 6.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Keefe, J.; Schaaf and Pillsbury introduced—

S. F. No. 1814: A bill for an act relating to taxation; diseased shade tree removal and replacement expenses; providing optional deductions from gross income and credits against property tax; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 290.09, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Keefe, J.; Schaaf and Pillsbury introduced—

S. F. No. 1815: A bill for an act relating to shade tree disease control; authorizing retroactive payments by municipalities to certain residential property owners for removal of diseased shade trees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 18.023, by adding a subdivision; and Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 18.023, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Keefe, J.; McCutcheon; Chenoweth and Jensen introduced—

S. F. No. 1816: A bill for an act relating to taxation; contract for deed; filing date for certificate of value; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 272.115, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Johnson and Perpich introduced—

S. F. No. 1817: A bill for an act relating to local government; setting conditions for the removal of local government units to permit mining.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Mr. Johnson introduced—

S. F. No. 1818: A bill for an act relating to taxation; motor vehicle excise tax; defining purchase price; providing for a used motor vehicle credit on the excise tax in certain transactions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 297B.01, Subdivision 8.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Johnson introduced—

S. F. No. 1819: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; repealing the motor vehicle transfer tax; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 168B.11.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Johnson introduced—

S. F. No. 1820: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; providing that the transfer tax on motor vehicles be directly received by counties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 168B.11.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Johnson, Solon and Ulland, J. introduced—

S. F. No. 1821: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; empowering the commissioner of natural resources to authorize the use of two lines for angling while trolling on Lake Superior; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 101.41, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Merriam, Anderson, Hughes, Sillers and Dieterich introduced—

S. F. No. 1822: A bill for an act relating to education; teachers; requiring school districts to grant certain extended leaves of absence; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 125.60, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Kleinbaum, Wegener, Solon and Dunn introduced—

S. F. No. 1823: A bill for an act relating to military justice; providing for military judges; modifying court composition and punishment authority; making other changes consistent and current federal military law; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 192A.015; 192A.02; 192A.045; 192A.06; 192A.085; 192A.09; 192A.10; 192A.105; 192A.11, Subdivision 3; 192A.12; 192A.13; 192A.14; 192A.145, Subdivisions 3 and 4; 192A.15; 192A.155; 192A.16; 192A.165; 192A.18, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 192A.195; 192A.205; 192A.21, Subdivision 2; 192A.215; 192A.22; 192A.225; 192A.23; 192A.245; 192A.25, Subdivision 2; 192A.265, Subdivision 1; 192A.275; 192A.28; 192A.29; 192A.305; 192A.315; 192A.345, Subdivisions 2 and 3; 192A.355; 192A.47; 192A.555; 192A.585; 192A.595, Subdivision 1; 192A.61, Subdivision 3; 192A.615; Chapter 192A by adding sections; and repealing Minne-

sota Statutes 1976, Sections 192A.01, Subdivision 1; 192A.04, Subdivisions 4 and 5; 192A.125; and 192A.565.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Davies, Merriam, Borden and Jensen introduced—

S. F. No. 1824: A bill for an act relating to civil actions; providing for the issuance of process in proceedings supplementary to execution; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 575.02.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Davies, Sikorski, Johnson, Merriam and Ashbach introduced—

S. F. No. 1825: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquor; persons to whom furnishing prohibited; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 340.14, Subdivision 1a.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Davies, Mmes. Brataas, Staples and Mr. Dieterich introduced—

S. F. No. 1826: A bill for an act relating to marriage and divorce; revising provisions allowing minors to marry; modifying prohibitions of marriage between certain parties; modifying requirements to receive a marriage license; requiring blood tests of applicants for a license to marry; modifying penalties for certain offenses; providing that children born of a prohibited marriage are legitimate; revising procedures and grounds for annulment actions; declaring the legal rights of putative spouses; providing new procedures for actions of dissolution and legal separation; limiting grounds for a dissolution to a finding that the marriage is irretrievably broken; modifying procedures for custody proceedings; declaring the right of a custodial parent to determine a child's upbringing; defining marital property; defining provisions for an award of maintenance to a spouse; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 517.02; 517.03; 517.04; 517.05; 517.06; 517.07; 517.09; 517.13; 517.14; 517.15; 517.16; 517.17; 517.19; 518.001; 518.01; 518.02; 518.03; 518.05; 518.06, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 518.07; 518.09; 518.10; 518.11; 518.12; 518.13; 518.14; 518.16; 518.165; 518.17; 518.175, Subdivisions 1 and 3, and by adding a subdivision; 518.18; 518.24; 518.27; 518.54; 518.55; 518.57; 518.58; 518.61; 518.62; 518.63; 518.64; 518.65; Chapter 517, by adding a section; and Chapter 518, by adding sections; and Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Sections 517.01; 517.08, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 518.155; and 518.551; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 518.06, Subdivision 2; 518.15; 518.29; 518.59; and 518.67.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Spear, Ulland, J.; Keefe, S.; Willet and Lewis introduced—

S. F. No. 1827: A bill for an act relating to human rights; prohibiting employment and bonding discrimination on the basis of a criminal record; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 363.01, Subdivision 24, and by adding subdivisions; 363.03, by adding a subdivision; Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Sections 363.02, Subdivision 1; 363.03, Subdivision 1; 363.05, Subdivision 1; 363.11; 363.115; and 363.12, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mrs. Knaak, Messrs. Frederick, Stokowski and Ashbach introduced—

S. F. No. 1828: A bill for an act relating to education; school aids; adjusting the foundation aid formula in certain cases of decreasing enrollment; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 124.17, Subdivision 1; and Laws 1977, Chapter 447, Article 1, Section 23, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Lessard, Sikorski, Strand, Nelson and Setzepfandt introduced—

S. F. No. 1829: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income tax; exempting certain military pay and pensions from taxation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 290.65, by adding a subdivision; and Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Sections 290.01, Subdivision 20; 290.08, Subdivision 6; and 290.92, Subdivisions 1 and 16.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Solon; Ulland, J.; Davies and Purfeerst introduced—

S. F. No. 1830: A bill for an act regarding corporations; modifying certain filing fees for domestic corporations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 300.49, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Merriam, Willet, Anderson, Dunn and Luther introduced—

S. F. No. 1831: A bill for an act relating to power plant sites and high voltage transmission line routes; clarifying the rights of property owners and transferees who previously transferred real property to utilities; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 116C.63, Subdivisions 4 and 5.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1832: A bill for an act relating to taxation; removing fees paid for drivers education in certain schools from the income

tax deduction for school tuition; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 290.09, Subdivision 22.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1833: A bill for an act relating to taxation; extending the property tax assessment freeze to disabled persons; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 273.011, Subdivisions 2 and 4.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1834: A bill for an act relating to mosquito control in certain counties in the metropolitan area; repealing provisions of law governing mosquito control; abolishing mosquito control districts; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 473.701 to 473.717.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 1835: A bill for an act relating to public health; allowing a parent or guardian to refuse certain immunizations for a child or ward on conscientious grounds; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 123.70, Subdivisions 1 and 2.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Borden, Bang and Benedict introduced—

S. F. No. 1836: A bill for an act relating to savings associations; authorizing savings associations to establish negotiable order of withdrawal accounts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Chapter 51A, by adding a section.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Kirchner, Gearty, Moe, Mrs. Brataas and Mr. Tennesen introduced—

S. F. No. 1837: A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; defining reverse mortgage loans; authorizing investments by certain financial institutions and insurance companies in reverse mortgage loans; providing a tax deduction for accrued interest on reverse mortgage loans; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 290.09, Subdivision 3; and Chapter 47, by adding a section.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Willet, Peterson, Moe, Bernhagen and Chenoweth introduced—

S. F. No. 1838: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; creating a citizens advisory body known as the natural resources congress; specifying its membership, organization, and duties; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Chenoweth, Mrs. Staples, Messrs. Schaaf, Sikorski and Ashbach introduced—

S. F. No. 1839: A bill for an act relating to municipalities; hospital, nursing home and health care facilities; authorizing municipalities to include refinancing of existing indebtedness in the cost of a project; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 447.35; 447.45, Subdivision 1; 447.47; and 474.05.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Merriam, Hughes, Sillers and Anderson introduced—

S. F. No. 1840: A bill for an act relating to education; secondary vocational education; allowing contracts with public or private agencies and providing aids for these contracts; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 124.573, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House File, herewith transmitted: H. F. No. 1792.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives
Transmitted January 26, 1978

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following bill was read the first time and referred to the committee indicated.

H. F. No. 1792: A bill for an act relating to the Lincoln-Pipestone and Rock county rural water systems; providing for the assessment of costs.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Coleman moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted, with the exception of reports pertaining to appointments. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government, to which was referred

S. F. No. 910: A bill for an act relating to local government; powers and duties of the Minnesota municipal board; regulating the incorporation, annexation, detachment, consolidation and boundary adjustments of certain local governmental units; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 414.01, Subdivisions 1, 2, 5, 7a, 8, 12, 14, and 15; 414.011, Subdivisions 2, 3, 5, and by adding subdivisions; 414.02; 414.031; 414.033, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, and by adding a subdivision; 414.041; 414.06; 414.061, Subdivisions 1 and 4, and by adding subdivisions; 414.065; 414.067; 414.07; 414.09; and Chapter 414, by adding sections; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 414.021; 414.032; 414.033, Subdivision 4; 414.034; 414.061, Subdivision 3; and 414.068.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

414.01 [CREATION OF A BOARD.] Subdivision 1. A board to be known as the Minnesota municipal board is hereby created to conduct proceedings and issue orders for the incorporation of property into statutory cities; the detachment of property from municipalities; and the annexation of property to municipalities; the consolidation of municipalities; and the consolidation of towns with municipalities creation of a municipality, the combination of two or more governmental units, or the alteration of a municipal boundary .

The legislature finds that: (1) sound urban development and preservation of agricultural land and open spaces through land use planning is essential to the continued economic growth of this state; (2) municipal government is necessary to provide the governmental services essential to sound urban development and for the protection of health, safety, and welfare in areas being used intensively for residential, commercial, industrial, institutional, and governmental purposes or in areas undergoing such development most efficiently provides governmental services in areas intensively developed for residential, commercial, industrial, and governmental purposes; and township government most efficiently provides governmental services in areas used or developed for agricultural, open space, and rural residential purposes ; (3) the public interest requires that municipalities be formed when there exists or will likely exist the necessary resources to provide for their economical and efficient operation; (4) annexation to or consolidation with existing municipalities or of unincorporated areas unable to supply municipal services should be facilitated; and, (5) the consolidation of municipalities should be encouraged. It is the purpose of this chapter to empower the Minnesota municipal board to promote and regulate development of municipalities to provide for the extension of municipal govern-

ment to areas which are developed or are in the process of being developed for intensive use for residential, commercial, industrial, institutional, and governmental purposes or are needed for such purposes; and to protect the stability of unincorporated areas which are used or developed for agricultural, open space, and rural residential purposes and are not presently needed for more intensive uses; and to protect the integrity of land use planning in municipalities and unincorporated areas so that the public interest in efficient local government will be properly recognized and served.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. The board shall be composed of three members appointed by the governor, with the advice and consent of the senate, at least one of whom shall be learned in the law. One of the members shall be a resident of a city of the first class, one shall be a resident of the metropolitan area as defined in section 473.02, subdivision 5 excluding therefrom any resident of any city of the first class and one shall be a resident from the area outside of such metropolitan area as heretofore defined. The board shall select from its members a chairman who shall have the powers and duties prescribed by the general law applicable to the heads of departments and agencies of the state. In proceedings before the board for the incorporation of a statutory city, consolidation of a ~~municipality and town~~ or of two or more municipalities, or annexation of unincorporated land to a municipality, two county commissioners of the board of the county in which all or a majority of the affected land is located shall serve on the board during such time as the board shall have under consideration said matter. The ~~secretary executive director~~ of the board shall upon initiation of a proceeding for such incorporation, consolidation, or annexation notify county in which the majority of the affected property is situated of the need for the appointment of the two county commissioners to the board. At the next succeeding meeting of the county board the commissioners shall designate the two appointed and shall thereupon immediately notify the Minnesota municipal board ~~secretary executive director~~ of their action. *The county commissioners shall represent districts which do not contain any of the affected territory. If unavailable, commissioners from the affected district may serve.*

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. The board shall transact business and conduct hearings by a majority of its members except as otherwise provided for by subdivision 12 but a smaller number may adjourn from time to time. The chairman, in his discretion, may order the consolidation of separate ~~hearings~~ *proceedings* in the interest of economy and expedience. In those proceedings in which the board is composed of five members, no order of the board shall be final unless approved by three of the five members, and in all other proceedings unless approved by two of the three members.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 7a, is amended to read:

Subd. 7a. The Minnesota municipal board shall appoint a ~~secretary an executive director~~, not a member of the board, who shall be learned in the law and receive a salary in an amount fixed by law. He shall devote full time to the duties of his office. All correspondence and petitions shall be addressed to the ~~secretary executive director~~ who shall be charged with conducting the administrative affairs of the board; ~~notifying the members of hearings, and making arrangements for hearings as to time and place, giving proper notice in the areas affected as hereinafter provided, keeping records and minutes, and providing secretarial service.~~

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. The board shall have authority to contract with regional, state, county, or local planning commissions or to hire expert consultants to provide specialized information and assistance, and any member of the board conducting or participating in the conduct of any hearings, or its ~~secretary executive director~~, shall have the power to administer oaths and affirmations, to issue subpoenas, and to compel the attendance and testimony of witnesses, and the production of papers, books, and documents.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 12, is amended to read:

Subd. 12. The board In proceedings pursuant to this chapter may designate by resolution its ~~secretary~~, the executive director or any of its members to board member may receive and report evidence. Anyone so designated and such person shall have power to administer oaths to witnesses, examine witnesses, and receive evidence. In any proceeding in which the evidence is received by one ~~commissioner board member~~ or by the ~~secretary~~ so designated executive director, such ~~commissioner the board member or secretary executive director~~ shall make a full report of the evidence to the board. When all members of the board do not attend a hearing in a proceeding, the executive director shall cause a transcript of the hearing to be made and distributed to all board members if requested by a party to the proceeding. Thereupon, the board shall proceed to make its decision based on all the evidence presented to the ~~commissioner or secretary~~ so designated and upon the report submitted. When the evidence is received by fewer than two permanent board members, the board's order shall be stayed for a period of 30 days, during which time any party of record may demand an oral review thereof a rehearing by the full board.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 14, is amended to read:

Subd. 14. When a board order enlarges or diminishes the area of an existing municipality or town, or creates a new municipality, the population of such the municipality or town for all purposes

shall be as found by the board at its hearing, until the next federal census. *The effective date of the population change shall be the same as the effective date of the order.*

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.01, Subdivision 15, is amended to read:

Subd. 15. When a board order enlarges an existing municipality or creates a new municipality, the board shall *may* indicate in its order the estimated increased costs to ~~such~~ the municipality as the result of such annexation or consolidation *the boundary adjustment*, and the time period that ~~such~~ the municipality would be allowed a special levy for these increased costs pursuant to section 275.50, subdivision 5, ~~clause (6)~~. *This subdivision shall apply to annexations or consolidations of municipalities in levy year 1971 or a subsequent levy year.*

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.011, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. "Property owner" means the fee owner of land, or the beneficial owner of land whose interest is primarily one of possession and enjoyment ~~in contemplation of ultimate ownership~~. The term includes, but is not limited to, vendees under a contract for deed, and mortgagors. *Any reference to a percentage of property owners shall mean in number.*

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.011, is amended by adding subdivisions to read:

Subd. 7. "Boundary adjustment" means any proceeding by the municipal board authorized by this chapter.

Subd. 8. "Meetings" and "hearings" includes, but is not limited to, board deliberations by electronic media.

Subd. 9. "Corporate boundary map" means a map which accurately describes the boundaries of a municipality.

Subd. 10. "Plat map" means that document recorded in the office of the county recorder in the county where the area is located.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Chapter 414, is amended by adding a section to read:

[414.012] [MAPS.] Subdivision 1. [CORPORATE BOUNDARY MAP.] *A municipality initiating any boundary adjustment authorized by this chapter shall file with the municipal board a corporate boundary map. Any proposed boundary adjustment shall be delineated on a copy of the corporate boundary map.*

Subd. 2. [PLAT MAPS.] *Any party initiating a boundary adjustment, which includes platted land, shall file with the municipal board maps which are necessary to support and identify the land description. The maps shall include copies of plats.*

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.02, is amended to read:

414.02 [MUNICIPAL INCORPORATION.] Subdivision 1. [INITIATING THE INCORPORATION PROCEEDINGS.] This section provides the exclusive method of incorporating a municipality in any county containing a city of the first or second class, in any county within any metropolitan areas as defined in section 473.02, subdivision 5, or in any other area of Minnesota if the proposed new municipality is within four miles of the boundary of an existing municipality. In any other area in Minnesota the petition or resolution for incorporation shall be filed with the board of county commissioners which shall apply the standards and procedures of this section in determining whether or not to order an incorporation. Hearings before the board of county commissioners shall be conducted by the secretary *Minnesota*. Proceedings for incorporation of a municipality may be initiated by petition of 100 or more property owners or by resolution of the town board having jurisdiction within an area containing a resident population of not less than 500 persons, and which is not included within the limits of any incorporated municipality and which area includes land that has been platted into lots and blocks in the manner provided by law. The petition or resolution shall be submitted to the ~~secretary~~ *executive director* and shall state the quantity of land embraced in it, platted and unplatted, the assessed valuation of the property, both platted and unplatted, the estimated number of actual residents, the proposed name of the municipality, a brief description of the existing facilities as to water, sewage disposal and fire and police protection, the names of all parties entitled to mailed notice under section 414.09, the reason for requesting incorporation, and shall include a *proposed corporate boundary map setting forth the boundaries of the territory*.

Subd. 2. [BOARD'S HEARING AND NOTICE.] Upon receipt of a petition or resolution made pursuant to subdivision 1, the ~~secretary~~ *executive director* of the board shall designate a time and place for a hearing in accordance with section 414.09.

Subd. 3. [BOARD'S ORDER.] ~~Upon completion of the hearing~~ *In arriving at its decision, the board shall consider the following factors:*

(a) *Present population, past population growth and projected population for the area;*

(b) *Quantity of land, both platted and unplatted, within the area proposed for incorporation; the natural terrain of the area including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions and such natural features as rivers, lakes and major bluffs;*

(c) *Present pattern of physical development in the area including residential, industrial, commercial, agricultural and institutional land uses; the present transportation network and potential transportation issues, including proposed highway development;*

(d) *Land use controls and planning presently being utilized in the area, including comprehensive plans for development in the area. If there is an inconsistency between the proposed development and the land use planning ordinance in force, the reason for the inconsistency;*

(e) *Present governmental services being provided to the area, including water and sewer service, fire rating and protection, police protection, street improvements and maintenance, administrative services, and recreational facilities;*

(f) *Existing or potential problems of environmental pollution and the need for additional services to resolve these problems;*

(g) *Fiscal data of the area, including the assessed valuation of both platted and unplatted lands and the division between homestead and nonhomestead property, and the present bonded indebtedness; and the mill rates of the county, school district, and township;*

(h) *Relationship and effect of the proposed incorporation on communities adjacent to the area and on school districts within and adjacent to the area;*

(i) *Adequacy of town government to deliver services to the area; and*

(j) *Analysis of whether necessary governmental services can best be provided through incorporation or annexation to an adjacent municipality.*

Based upon these factors, the board may order the incorporation if it finds that (a) the property to be incorporated is now, or is about to become, urban or suburban in character, or (b) that the existing township form of government is not adequate to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, or (c) the proposed incorporation would be in the best interests of the area under consideration. The board may deny the incorporation if the area, or a part thereof would be better served by annexation to or consolidated with an adjacent municipality. As a guide in arriving at a determination, the board shall consider the following factors:

(a) *Present population, past population growth and projected population for the area;*

(b) *Quantity of land within the area proposed for incorporation;*

(c) *Present pattern of physical development in the area including residential, industrial, commercial and institutional land uses;*

(d) *Comprehensive plans for development of the area including development as projected by the metropolitan council or the state planning agency;*

(e) *Type and degree of control presently being exercised over development in the area including zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations and housing and building codes;*

(f) *Natural terrain of the area including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions and such natural features as rivers, lakes and major bluffs;*

(g) *Present governmental services being provided to the area including water and sewer service, fire and police protection, street improvements and maintenance, and recreational facilities;*

(h) Existing or potential problems of environmental pollution and the need for additional services to avoid or minimize these problems;

(i) Fiscal data of the area including assessed valuation trends, mill rate trends (state, county school district and town) and present bonded indebtedness;

(j) Relationship and effect of the proposed incorporation on communities adjacent to the area and school districts within and adjacent to the area;

(k) Analysis of whether the needed governmental services can best be provided through incorporation or annexation to an adjacent municipality; and

(l) Adequacy of town government to deal with problems of the area.

The board may alter the boundaries of the proposed incorporation by increasing or decreasing the area to be incorporated so as to include only that property which is now, or is about to become, urban or suburban in character, or may exclude property that may be better served by another unit of government. *In all cases, the board shall set forth the factors which are the basis for the decision.*

Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary relating to the number of wards which may be established, the board may provide for election of councilmen by wards, not less than three nor more than seven in number, whose limits are prescribed in the board order upon a finding that area representation is required to accord proper representation in the proposed incorporated area because of uneven population density in different parts thereof or the existence of agricultural lands therein which are in the path of suburban development, but after four years from the effective date of an incorporation the council of the municipality may by resolution adopted by a four-fifths vote abolish the ward system and provide for the election of all councilmen at large as in other municipalities.

The board's order for incorporation shall provide for the election of ~~municipality~~ *municipal* officers in accordance with section 414.09. The plan of government shall be "Optional Plan A", provided that an alternate plan may be adopted pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 412.551, at any time. *The ordinances of the township in which the new municipality is located shall continue in effect until repealed by the governing body of the new municipality.*

Subd. 4. [EFFECTIVE DATE OF INCORPORATION.] The incorporation shall be effective upon the election and qualification of new ~~municipality~~ *municipal* officers or on such later date as is fixed by the board in its order.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.031, is amended to read:

414.031 [ANNEXATION OF UNINCORPORATED PROPERTY TO A MUNICIPALITY BY BOARD ORDER.] Subdivision 1. [INITIATING THE PROCEEDING.] A proceeding for the annexation of unincorporated property abutting a municipality may be initiated by submitting to the ~~secretary~~ *executive director* and the affected township one of the following:

- (a) A resolution of the annexing municipality;
- (b) A resolution of the township containing the area proposed for annexation;
- (c) A petition of 20 percent of the property owners or 100 property owners, whichever is less, in the area to be annexed ;
- (d) A *resolution of the municipal council together with a resolution of the township board stating their desire to have the entire township annexed to the municipality .*

The petition, or resolution shall set forth the boundaries of the territory , ~~the quantity of land within the boundaries, the number of residents, the existing public facilities and services, and proposed for annexation,~~ the names of all parties entitled to notice under section 414.09, and the reasons for requesting annexation. If the proceeding is initiated by a petition of property owners, the petition shall be accompanied by a resolution of the annexing municipality ~~approving supporting the annexation petition .~~

Subd. 3. [BOARD'S HEARING AND NOTICE.] Upon receipt of a petition or resolution initiating an annexation the ~~secretary~~ *executive director* shall designate a time and a place for a hearing in accordance with section 414.09.

Subd. 4. [BOARD'S ORDER.] ~~Upon completion of the hearing~~ *In arriving at its decision, the board shall consider the following factors:*

- (a) *Present population, past population growth and projected population of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality;*
- (b) *Quantity of land within the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality; and natural terrain including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions and such natural features as rivers, lakes and major bluffs;*
- (c) *Degree of contiguity of the boundaries between the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation;*
- (d) *Present pattern of physical development of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality including residential, industrial, commercial, agricultural and institutional land uses; the present transportation network and potential transportation issues, including proposed highway development;*
- (e) *Land use controls and planning presently being utilized in the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation, including comprehensive plans for development in the area. If there is an inconsistency between the proposed development and the land use planning ordinance in force, the reason for the inconsistency;*

(f) *Present governmental services being provided in the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation, including water and sewer service, fire rating and protection, police protection, street improvements and maintenance, administrative services, and recreational facilities;*

(g) *Existing or potential problems of environmental pollution and the need for additional services to resolve these problems;*

(h) *Plans and programs by the annexing municipality for providing needed governmental services to the property proposed for annexation;*

(i) *Fiscal data of the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation, including assessed valuation and the present bonded indebtedness, and the mill rates of the county, school district, and township;*

(j) *Relationship and effect of the proposed annexation on communities adjacent to the area and on school districts within and adjacent to the area;*

(k) *Adequacy of town government to deliver services to the property proposed for annexation;*

(l) *Analysis of whether necessary governmental services can best be provided through incorporation or annexation to an adjacent municipality; and*

(m) *If only a part of a township is annexed, the ability of the remainder of the township to continue or the feasibility of it being incorporated separately or being annexed to another municipality.*

Based upon these factors, the board may order the annexation (a) if it finds that the property proposed for annexation is now, or is about to become, urban or suburban in character. The board may in any case order the annexation, or (b) if it finds that municipal government of the property in the area proposed for annexation is required to protect the public health, safety, and welfare in reference to plat control or land development and construction which may be reasonably expected to occur within a reasonable time thereafter and, or (c) if it finds that the annexation would be in the best interest of the annexing municipality and of the property proposed for annexation and, . If only a part of a township is to be annexed, that the board shall consider whether the remainder of the township can continue to carry on the functions of government without undue hardship. The petition shall be denied if the board shall deny the annexation if it finds that the increase in revenues for the annexing municipality bears no reasonable relation to the monetary value of benefits conferred upon the annexed area. The annexation may be denied board may deny the annexation (a) if it appears that annexation of all or a part of the property to an adjacent municipality would better serve the interests of the residents of the property or (b) if the remainder of the township would suffer undue hardship. In arriving at its decision the board shall consider the following factors:

(a) Present population, past population growth and projected population of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality;

(b) Area of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality;

(c) Present pattern of physical development of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality including residential, industrial, commercial and institutional land uses;

(d) Comprehensive plans for development of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality including projected development for the area as developed by the metropolitan council or the state planning agency;

(e) Type and degree of control presently being exercised over development of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality including zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations and housing and building codes;

(f) Natural terrain including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions and such natural features as rivers, lakes and major bluffs;

(g) Present governmental services being provided in the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation, including water and sewer service, fire and police protection, street improvements and maintenance, and recreational facilities;

(h) Existing or potential problems of environmental pollution and the need for additional services to avoid or minimize these problems;

(i) Fiscal data of the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation including assessed valuation trends, mill rate trends (state, county, school district and town) and present bonded indebtedness;

(j) Relationship and effect of the proposed annexation on communities adjacent to the area and school districts within and adjacent to the area;

(k) Analysis of whether the needed governmental services can best be provided through incorporation, or consolidation with or annexation to an adjacent municipality;

(l) Adequacy of town government to adequately deal with problems of the property proposed for annexation;

(m) Availability of space within the annexing municipality to provide for projected future growth;

(n) Plans and programs by the annexing municipality for providing needed government services to the proposed annexed property;

(o) Degree of contiguity of the boundaries between the annexing municipality and the proposed annexed property; and

(p) If only a part of a township is annexed, the ability of the

remainder of the township to continue or the feasibility of it being incorporated separately or being annexed to another municipality.

The board may alter the boundaries of the area to be annexed by increasing or decreasing the area so as to include only that property which is now or is about to become urban or suburban in character or to add property of such character abutting the area proposed for annexation in order to preserve or improve the symmetry of the area, or to exclude property that may better be served by another unit of government. If the board determines that part of the area would be better served by another municipality or township, the board may initiate and approve annexation on its own motion by conducting further hearings and issuing orders pursuant to subdivisions 3, 4, and 5. In all cases, the board shall set forth the factors which are the basis for the decision.

Subd. 4a. [PROCEEDINGS INITIATED BY JOINT RESOLUTION.] If the proceeding has been initiated under subdivision 1, clause (d), any annexation order shall include a provision for the election of new municipal officers in accordance with section 414.09. The expanded municipality shall be governed by the home rule charter or statutory form which governs the annexing municipality, except that any ward system for the election of councilmen shall be inoperable. The ordinances of both the annexing municipality and the township shall continue in effect within the former boundaries until repealed by the governing body of the new municipality.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary the board may provide for election of councilmen by wards, not less than three nor more than seven in number, whose limits are prescribed in the board order, upon a finding that area representation is required to accord proper representation in the municipality because of uneven population density in different parts thereof or the existence of agricultural lands therein which are in the path of suburban development; but after four years from the effective date of an annexation the council of the municipality may by resolution adopted by a four-fifths vote abolish the ward system and provide for the election of all councilmen at large.

Until the effective date of the annexation order, the town board and other officers of the town shall continue to exercise their powers and duties under the town laws in that portion of the municipality that was formerly the town, and the council and other officers of the annexing municipality shall continue to exercise their powers and duties in that portion of the expanded municipality that was formerly the municipality. Thereafter the town board and the council of the annexing municipality shall have no jurisdiction within the municipality, and the new municipal council and other new officers shall act in respect to any matters previously undertaken by the town board of supervisors or municipal council within the limits of the expanded municipality, including the making of any improvement and the levying of any special assessments therefor in the same manner and to

the same effect as if such improvement had been undertaken by the municipality.

The new municipal council may continue or discontinue any board that may have previously existed in the town or former municipality.

Subd. 5. [ANNEXATION ELECTION.] Where the proceeding for annexation has not been initiated by petition of a majority of the property owners within the area to be annexed, or when the board has assumed jurisdiction under section 414.031, subdivision 1, clause (d) and orders that the entire township named in the resolution be annexed to the city named in the resolution, no referendum is required. In all other instances the order of the board for annexation shall fix a day, not less than twenty days nor more than ninety days, after the entry of such an order, when an election shall be held at a place designated by the board within the area determined by the board to be primarily and substantially interested in or affected by the board order. The secretary executive director shall cause a copy of the order affirming the petition, including the notice of the election, to be posted not less than 20 days before the election in three public places in the area, and shall cause notice of the election to be published two successive weeks in a newspaper qualified as medium of official and legal publication, of general circulation, in the area. The board shall appoint the necessary election judges from voters resident in the area and shall supervise them in their duties. The board shall designate the polling place or places, using so far as possible the usual polling place or places. The polls shall be open at least 13 hours and until at least 8 p.m. The judges shall conduct the election so far as practicable in accordance with the laws regulating special elections. Only voters residing within the area primarily and substantially interested in or affected by the board's order shall be entitled to vote. The ballot shall bear the words "For Annexation" and "Against Annexation" with a square before each of the phrases in one of which the voter shall make a cross to express his choice. The ballots and election supplies shall be provided and the election judges shall be paid by the petitioners or annexing municipality. Immediately upon completion of the counting of the ballots, the judges of the election shall make a signed and verified certificate declaring the time and place of holding the election, that they have canvassed the ballots cast, and the number cast both for and against the proposition, and they shall then file the certificate with the secretary executive director of the board. If the certificate shows the majority of the votes cast were "For Annexation" the board's order shall be effective in accordance with subdivision 6. *If a majority of votes were cast against the annexation, the board shall not issue an order for annexation. If the annexation is denied, or if it is defeated in the referendum, no proceeding for the annexation of substantially the same area may be initiated within two years from the date of the board's order, unless the new proceeding is initiated by a majority of the area's property owners and the petition is supported by any abutting townships and municipalities. The secretary executive director shall attach*

the certificate to the original petition or resolution, the original order affirming the petition or resolution as submitted or as amended in the order, and the original proofs of the posting of the election notice, and the annexation order upon receipt of the certificate notify all parties of record of the election results.

Subd. 6. [EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION.] Upon the execution of the annexation order, pursuant to subdivision 5, a certified copy shall be sent to the council of the annexing city, the town board of the township in which the annexation area is located, and to the individual petitioners if initiated in that manner. A certified copy of the annexation order shall be sent to the secretary of state and the county auditor of the county or counties in which the property annexed is located. The annexation shall be effective as of the date of such filing fixed in the annexation order or on such later date as is fixed in the annexation order.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Chapter 414, is amended by adding a section to read:

[414.0325] [ORDERLY ANNEXATIONS WITHIN A DESIGNATED AREA.] *Subdivision 1. [INITIATING THE PROCEEDING.] One or more townships and one or more municipalities, by joint resolution, may designate an unincorporated area as in need of orderly annexation and may confer jurisdiction on the board over annexations in the designated area and over the various provisions in said agreement by submission of said joint resolution to the executive director. The resolution shall include a description of the designated area. Thereafter, an annexation of any part of the designated area may be initiated by submitting to the executive director a resolution of any signatory to the joint resolution or by the board of its own motion. Whenever the pollution control agency or other state agency pursuant to sections 115.03, 115.47, 115.49, or any law giving a state agency similar powers, orders a municipality to extend a municipal service to a designated unincorporated area, such an order will confer jurisdiction on the Minnesota Municipal Board to consider designation of the area for orderly annexation.*

Subd. 2. [BOARD'S HEARING AND NOTICE.] *Upon receipt of a resolution for annexation of a part of the designated area, the executive director shall set a time and place for a hearing in accordance with section 414.09.*

Subd. 3. [BOARD'S ORDER.] *In arriving at its decision, the board shall consider the following factors:*

(a) *Present population, past population growth and projected population of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality;*

(b) *Quantity of land within the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality; and natural terrain including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions and such natural features as rivers, lakes and major bluffs;*

(c) *Degree of contiguity of the boundaries between the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation;*

(d) Present pattern of physical development of the property proposed for annexation and the annexing municipality including residential, industrial, commercial, agricultural and institutional land uses; the present transportation network and potential transportation issues, including proposed highway development;

(e) Land use controls and planning presently being utilized in the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation, including comprehensive plans for development in the area. If there is an inconsistency between the proposed development and the land use planning ordinance in force, the reason for the inconsistency;

(f) Present governmental services being provided in the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation, including water and sewer service, fire rating and protection, police protection street improvements and maintenance, administrative services, and recreational facilities;

(g) Existing or potential problems of environmental pollution and the need for additional services to resolve these problems;

(h) Plans and programs by the annexing municipality for providing needed governmental services to the property proposed for annexation;

(i) Fiscal data of the annexing municipality and the property proposed for annexation, including assessed valuation and the present bonded indebtedness, and the mill rates of the county, school district, and township;

(j) Relationship and effect of the proposed annexation on communities adjacent to the area and on school districts within and adjacent to the area;

(k) Adequacy of town government to deliver necessary services to the property proposed for annexation;

(l) Analysis of whether the needed governmental services can best be provided through incorporation or annexation to an adjacent municipality; and

(m) If only a part of a township is annexed, the ability of the remainder of the township to continue or the feasibility of it being incorporated separately or being annexed to another municipality.

Based upon these factors, the board may order the annexation if it finds that the area proposed for annexation (a) is now or is about to become urban or suburban in character and that the annexing municipality is capable of providing the services required by the area within a reasonable time; or (b) if it finds that the existing township form of government is not adequate to protect the public health, safety, and welfare; or (c) if it finds that annexation would be in the best interests of the area proposed for annexation. The board may deny the annexation if it conflicts with any provision of the joint agreement. The board may alter the boundaries of the proposed annexation by increasing or decreasing the area so as to include that property within the

designated area which is in need of municipal services or will be in need of municipal services.

If the annexation is denied, no proceeding for the annexation of substantially the same area may be initiated within two years from the date of the board's order unless the new proceeding is initiated by a majority of the area's property owners and the petition is supported by affected parties to the resolution. In all cases, the board shall set forth the factors which are the basis for the decision.

Subd. 4. [EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION.] The board's order shall be effective upon the issuance of the order or at such later time as is provided by the board in its order.

Subd. 5. [PLANNING IN THE AREA DESIGNATED FOR ORDERLY ANNEXATION.] A joint resolution may provide for the establishment of a board to exercise planning and land use control authority within any area designated as an orderly annexation area pursuant to this section, in the manner prescribed by Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 471.59, Subdivisions 2 through 8, inclusive.

(a) A board established pursuant to a joint resolution shall have all of the powers contained in sections 462.351 to 462.364, and shall have the authority to adopt and enforce the uniform fire code promulgated pursuant to section 199F.011.

(b) The joint resolution may provide that joint planning and land use controls shall apply to any or all parts of the area designated for orderly annexation as well as to any adjacent unincorporated or incorporated area, provided that the area to be included shall be described in the joint resolution.

(c) If the joint resolution does not provide for joint planning and land use control, the following procedures shall govern:

If the county and townships agree to exclude the area from their zoning and subdivision ordinances, the municipality may extend its zoning and subdivision regulations to include the entire orderly annexation area as provided in section 462.357, subdivision 1, and section 462.358, subdivision 1.

If the county and township do not agree to such extraterritorial zoning and subdivision regulation by the municipality, zoning and subdivision regulation within the orderly annexation area shall be controlled by a three-member committee with one member appointed from each of the municipal, town, and county governing bodies. This committee shall serve as the "governing body" and "board of appeals and adjustments", for purposes of sections 462.357 and 462.358, within the orderly annexation area. The committee shall have all of the powers contained in sections 462.351 to 462.364, and shall have the authority to adopt and enforce the uniform fire code promulgated pursuant to section 199F.011.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.033, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

414.033 [ANNEXATION BY ORDINANCE.] Subdivision 1. ~~Except as hereinafter provided, unincorporated land abutting on any municipality and not included in any other municipality may be annexed to the municipality by ordinance in the manner provided in this section. The annexation of unincorporated property abutting a municipality may be annexed to the municipality by ordinance as provided for in this section.~~

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.033, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. ~~If the land is owned by the municipality, the municipal council may by ordinance declare the land annexed to the municipality, and any such land is deemed to be urban in character. A municipal council may by ordinance declare land annexed to the municipality and any such land is deemed to be urban or suburban in character or about to become so if:~~

(a) ~~The land is owned by the municipality; or~~

(b) ~~The land is completely surrounded by land within the municipal limits.~~

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.033, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. ~~If the perimeter of the area to be annexed by a municipality is 60 percent or more bordered by the municipality and if the area to be annexed is 40 acres or less, the municipality shall serve notice of intent to annex upon the town board and the municipal board. The town board shall have 60 90 days from the date of service to serve objections with the board. If no objections are forthcoming within the said 60-day 90-day period, such land may be annexed by ordinance. If objections are filed with the board, the board shall conduct hearings and issue its order as in the case of annexations under section 414.031, subdivisions 3 and 4.~~

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.033, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. ~~If the land is platted, or, if unplatted, does not exceed 200 acres, the property owner or a majority of the property owners in number may petition the municipal council to have such land included within the abutting municipality and, within ten days thereafter, shall file copies of the petition with the board, the town board, the county board and the municipal council of any other municipality which borders the land to be annexed. Within 60 90 days thereafter from the date of service, the town board or the municipal council of such abutting municipality may submit written objections to the annexation to the board and the annexing municipality. Upon receipt of such objections, the board shall proceed to hold a hearing and issue its order in accordance with section 414.031, subdivisions 3, 4, and 5. If written objections are not submitted within the time specified hereunder and if the municipal council determines that property proposed for the annexation will be to the best interests of the municipality and of the territory affected is now or is about~~

to become urban or suburban in character , it may by ordinance declare such land annexed to the municipality. If the petition is not signed by all the property owners of the land proposed to be annexed, the ordinance shall not be enacted until the municipal council has held a hearing on the proposed annexation after at least 30 days mailed notice to all property owners within the area to be annexed.

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.033, Subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. Whenever a proceeding for annexation is initiated under this section and all or any part of the land is included in a ~~proceeding for incorporation, consolidation or annexation which is another boundary adjustment proceeding~~ pending before the board, no action thereon shall be taken by the municipality, unless otherwise provided by an order of the board, until final disposition has been made of the petition pending before the board. *Under this section the board will accept a waiver from all parties having a right to object, stating they have no objections to the proposed annexation and waiving the 90 day period before an annexation ordinance may be adopted.*

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.033, Subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. Any annexation ordinance provided for in this section ~~is final upon filing a copy of the ordinance with the board, the town clerk, the county auditor, and the secretary of state must be filed with the board, the township, the county auditor and the secretary of state and is final on the date the ordinance is approved by the board.~~

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.033, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 8. The board may issue an order adjusting the population of a municipality and town for all purposes until the next federal census upon receipt of a joint resolution requesting such action between the municipality and town.

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Chapter 414, is amended by adding a section to read:

[414.035] [DIFFERENTIAL TAXATION.] *Whenever a board order, under sections 414.031, 414.0325, 414.033, annexes part or all of a township to a municipality, the board may provide that the mill levy of the annexing municipality on the area annexed shall be increased in substantially equal proportions over not less than two nor more than six years to equality with the mill levy on the property already within the municipality. The appropriate period, if any, shall be based on the time reasonably required to effectively provide full municipal services to the annexed area.*

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.041, is amended to read:

414.041 [CONSOLIDATION OF TWO OR MORE MUNICIPALITIES.] Subdivision 1. [INITIATING THE PROCEEDING.] This section provides the exclusive procedure for consolidating abutting municipalities in the state of Minnesota. Two or more municipalities may be the subject of a single proceeding provided that each municipality shares a common boundary with *abuts* at least one of the included municipalities. The proceeding shall be initiated by submitting to the *secretary executive director* a resolution of a municipality, a petition signed by *ten percent or more of the resident voters of a municipality, according to the number of votes cast for mayor at the last municipal election or, where no mayor is elected at such election, five percent or more of the resident voters of the municipality who voted for governor at the last general election or the proceeding may be initiated by the board of its own motion.*

The petition or resolution shall set forth the following information about each included municipality: name, *population*, description of boundaries, *quantity of land within the boundaries, and existing public facilities and services.* The petition or resolution shall also contain a statement explaining the reasons for requesting the consolidation and the names of all parties entitled to mailed notice under section 414.09. The party initiating the proceeding shall serve copies of the petition or resolution on all of the included municipalities.

Subd. 2. [BOARD'S HEARING AND NOTICE.] Upon receipt of a petition or resolution for consolidation or upon motion of the board made pursuant to subdivision 1, the *secretary executive director* shall designate a time and a place for a hearing in accordance with section 414.09.

Subd. 3. [BOARD'S ORDER.] If the board finds that consolidation will be for the best interests of the municipalities, it shall order the consolidation but no consolidation ordered shall be effective without resolutions of the governing bodies of the affecting municipalities approving such consolidation orders. As a guide in arriving at a determination, *In arriving at its decision, the board shall consider the following factors:*

(a) Present population, past population growth and projected population of the included municipalities;

(b) Quantity of land within the included municipalities; *and natural terrain including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions, and such natural features as rivers, lakes and major bluffs;*

(c) Present pattern of physical development in the included municipalities including residential, industrial, commercial and institutional land uses;

(d) Comprehensive plans for development of the area including development as projected by the metropolitan council or state planning agency;

(e) Type and degree of control presently being exercised over

development in the included municipalities including zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, and housing and building codes;

(f) Natural terrain of the area including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions, and such natural features as rivers, lakes, and major bluffs;

(g) Present governmental services being provided to the area including water and sewer service, fire and police protection, street improvements and maintenance, and recreational facilities;

(h) Existing and potential problems of environmental pollution and the need for additional services to avoid or minimize these problems;

(i) Fiscal data of the included municipalities including assessed valuation trends, mill rate trends (state, county, and school district) and present bonded indebtedness;

(j) Relationship and effect of the proposed consolidation on adjacent communities and school districts within and adjacent to the municipalities proposed for consolidation;

(k) Analysis of whether services needed by each included municipality could better be provided by an adjacent but not included municipality;

(l) Availability of space within the included municipalities to accommodate growth;

(m) Plans and programs under consideration for providing needed governmental services to the proposed new municipality; and

(n) Degree of contiguity of the boundaries of the included municipalities.

(c) Degree of contiguity of the boundaries between the included municipalities;

(d) Analysis of whether present planning and physical development in the included municipalities indicates that the consolidation of these municipalities will benefit planning and land use patterns in the area; the present transportation network and potential transportation issues, including proposed highway development;

(e) Analysis of whether consolidation of the included municipalities is consistent with comprehensive plans for the area;

(f) Analysis of whether governmental services now available in the included municipalities can be more effectively or more economically provided by consolidation;

(g) Analysis of whether there are existing or potential environmental problems and whether municipal consolidation will help ameliorate such conditions;

(h) Analysis of tax and governmental aid issues involved in the consolidation of the included municipalities; and

(i) Analysis of the effect of consolidation on area school districts.

Based on these factors, the board shall order the consolidation if the board it finds that consolidation will be for the best interests of the municipalities; it shall order the consolidation but no consolidation ordered shall be effective without resolutions of the governing bodies of the affecting municipalities approving such consolidation orders. As a guide in arriving at a determination, the board shall consider the following factors: In all cases, the board shall set forth the factors which are the basis for the decision.

(a) Present population, past population growth and projected population of the included municipalities;

(b) Quantity of land within the included municipalities;

(c) Present pattern of physical development in the included municipalities including residential, industrial, commercial and institutional land uses;

(d) Comprehensive plans for development of the area including development as projected by the metropolitan council or state planning agency;

(e) Type and degree of control presently being exercised over development in the included municipalities including zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, and housing and building codes;

(f) Natural terrain of the area including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions, and such natural features as rivers, lakes, and major bluffs;

(g) Present governmental services being provided to the area including water and sewer service, fire and police protection, street improvements and maintenance, and recreational facilities;

(h) Existing and potential problems of environmental pollution and the need for additional services to avoid or minimize these problems;

(i) Fiscal data of the included municipalities including assessed valuation trends, mill rate trends (state, county, and school district) and present bonded indebtedness;

(j) Relationship and effect of the proposed consolidation on adjacent communities and school districts within and adjacent to the municipalities proposed for consolidation;

(k) Analysis of whether services needed by each included municipality could better be provided by an adjacent but not included municipality;

(l) Availability of space within the included municipalities to accommodate growth;

(m) Plans and programs under consideration for providing needed governmental services to the proposed new municipality; and

(n) Degree of contiguity of the boundaries of the included municipalities.

The order shall provide for election of new municipal officers in accordance with section 414.09. If the most populous of the included municipalities is a statutory city, the new municipality shall be a statutory city and the plan of government shall be Optional Plan A, provided that an alternate plan may be adopted pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 412.551, at any time. If the most populous of the included municipalities is a city, the new municipality shall be governed by its home rule charter or the statutory form under which it is governed except that any ward system for the election of councilmen shall be inoperable. The ordinances of all the included municipalities shall continue in effect within their former boundaries until repealed by the governing body of the new municipality.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, the board may in its order establish a ward system in the new municipality, in which event it shall establish not less than three nor more than seven wards, each of which shall elect one councilman. When more than two years have elapsed after consolidation, the governing body may, by a four-fifths vote, abolish the ward system.

The new municipality shall assume the name of the most populous municipality unless previous to the election another name is chosen by joint resolution of a majority of the included municipalities.

The number of license privileges existing in the included municipalities prior to consolidation and pursuant to state law shall not be diminished as a result of the consolidation.

If the consolidation is denied, no proceeding for the consolidation of the same municipalities may be initiated within two years from the date of the board's order unless authorized by the board.

Subd. 4. [ADOPTION BY COUNCILS OF MUNICIPALITIES.] Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, no consolidation order of the board involving existing municipalities shall become effective unless adopted by the council of each affected municipality by a majority vote and unless the consolidation order of the board is approved by the qualified voters of the affected municipalities at a general or special election set according to law. The form of the ballot shall be fixed by the board; and, if a majority of the votes cast on the question in each municipality are in favor of its adoption, the order of the board shall become effective as provided herein.

Subd. 4a. [DIFFERENTIAL TAXATION.] Where one municipality is receiving substantially fewer municipal services, the board may provide that the mill levy of such a municipality shall be increased in substantially equal proportions over a period of not more than five years to equality with the mill levy in the remainder of the new municipality, such period to be determined by the board on the basis of the period reasonably required effectively to provide substantially equal municipal services.

Subd. 5. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] The consolidation shall be effective upon the election and qualification of new municipal officers, or at such later date as set by the board in its order.

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.06, is amended to read:

414.06 [DETACHMENT OF PROPERTY FROM A MUNICIPALITY.] Subdivision 1. [INITIATING THE PROCEEDING.] Property which is situated within a municipality and abutting the municipal boundary, ~~unplatted, and occupied and used primarily for agricultural purposes rural in character and not developed for urban residential, commercial, or industrial purposes~~ may be detached from the municipality according to the following procedure. The proceeding may be initiated by submitting to the board a resolution of the municipality to which the land is attached or by submitting to the board a petition of all of the property owners of the land to be detached if the area is less than 40 acres or of 75 percent of the property owners if over 40 acres. The petition or resolution shall set forth the boundaries and the area of the land to be detached, the number and character of the buildings, the resident population, and the municipal improvements, if any, in the area.

Subd. 2. [BOARD'S HEARING AND NOTICE.] If both a resolution of the municipality and a petition by *all* the property owners are submitted, no hearing is necessary. In any other case, upon receipt of a petition or resolution, the ~~secretary executive~~ director of the board shall designate a time and place for a hearing in accordance with section 414.09.

Subd. 3. [BOARD'S ORDER.] Upon completion of the hearing, the board may order the detachment if it finds that the requisite number of property owners have signed the petition if initiated by the property owners, that the property is ~~unplatted and used and occupied primarily for agricultural purposes rural in character and not developed for urban residential, commercial or industrial purposes~~, that the property is within the boundaries of the municipality and abuts a boundary, that the detachment would not unreasonably affect the symmetry of the detaching municipality, and that the land is not needed for reasonably anticipated future development. *The board may deny the detachment if it finds that the remainder of the municipality cannot continue to carry on the functions of government without undue hardship.* The board shall have authority to decrease the area of property to be detached and may include only a part of the proposed area ~~in its order to be detached~~. If the tract abuts more than one township, it shall become a part of each township, being divided by projecting through it the boundary line between the townships. The detached area may be relieved of the primary responsibility for existing indebtedness of the municipality and be required to assume the indebtedness of the township of which it becomes a part, in such proportion as the board shall deem just and equitable having in view the amount of taxes due and delinquent and the indebtedness of each township and the municipality affected, if any, and for what purpose the same was incurred, all in relation to the benefit inuring to the detached area as a result of the indebtedness and the last assessed value of the taxable property in each township and municipality.

Subd. 4. [EFFECTIVE DATE OF DETACHMENT.] The detachment shall be effective upon the issuance of the board's order, or at such later date, as provided by the board in its order.

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.061, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

414.061 [CONCURRENT DETACHMENT AND ANNEXATION OF INCORPORATED LAND.] Subdivision 1. [INITIATING THE PROCEEDING.] Property of one municipality which abuts another may be concurrently detached and annexed by the procedure set forth in this section. The proceeding shall be initiated by submitting to the ~~secretary~~ *executive director* resolutions of both municipalities describing the land and stating their desire to detach and annex the land.

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.061, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [BOARD INITIATION.] The board may initiate proceedings for the concurrent detachment and annexation of portions of one municipality completely surrounded by another municipality, or upon application of all of the property owners, provided, however, that in such cases the board shall conduct hearings and issue its order as in the case of annexations of unincorporated property under section 414.041, subdivisions 2, and 5.

Sec. 27. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Chapter 414, is amended by adding a section to read:

[414.063] [JOINT AGREEMENTS.] *After notice and hearing as provided in section 414.09, the board may include provisions of joint agreements between political subdivisions in its orders.*

Sec. 28. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.065, is amended to read:

414.065 [STATE LANDS, PROCEEDINGS.] In any case in which the state is the fee owner of land partly or wholly within any area proposed to be annexed, incorporated, or detached part of a boundary adjustment, the executive council of the state of Minnesota may petition for, or consent to, any action proceeding under this chapter, if the council deems such action to be in the best interests of the state.

Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.067, is amended to read:

414.067 [APPORTIONMENT OF ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS.] Subdivision 1. [TOWNSHIP OR MUNICIPALITY DIVIDED.] ~~Upon incorporation, consolidation, annexation, or concurrent detachment and annexation under section 414.02, 414.021, 414.031, 414.032, 414.041 and 414.061, Whenever the board divides an existing governmental unit, the board shall may~~ apportion the property and obligations of any township or municipality divided by board order between the governmental unit adding territory and the governmental unit from which the territory was obtained. The apportionment shall be made in a just and equitable manner having in view the value of the existing

township or municipal property located in the area to be added, the assets, value, and location of all the taxable property in the existing township or municipality, the indebtedness, the taxes due and delinquent, other revenue accrued but not paid to the existing township or municipality and the ability of any remainder of the township or municipality to function as an effective governmental unit. The order shall not relieve any property from any tax liability for payment for any bonded obligation, but the taxable property in the new municipality may be made primarily liable thereon.

Subd. 2. [ENTIRE TOWNSHIP OR MUNICIPALITY.] When an entire township is annexed by an existing municipality, or an entire township is incorporated into a new municipality, or an entire township or a municipality is consolidated into a new municipality, all money, claims, or properties, including real estate owned, held, or possessed by the annexed, incorporated or consolidated township or municipality, and any proceeds or taxes levied by such town or municipality, collected or uncollected, shall become and be the property of the new or annexing municipality with full power and authority to use and dispose of the same for public purposes as the council or new annexing municipality may deem best, subject to the rights of creditors. Any bonded indebtedness of a town or former municipality annexed to an existing municipality or incorporated or consolidated into a new municipality shall be borne only by that property within the boundaries of the former town or municipality, provided, however, the units of government concerned may by resolution of their governing bodies agree that the new municipality shall assume the bonded indebtedness of the former units of government existing and outstanding at the time of annexation, incorporation or consolidation.

Subd. 3. [REVISION OF TAX RECORDS; REDISTRIBUTION OF LEVIES.] In an apportionment made under this section the board may order the county auditor to revise tax records and respread levies at any time prior to December 15 or order the county treasurer to redistribute taxes levied and receivable.

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.07, is amended to read:

414.07 [APPEALS.] Subdivision 1. [ORDERS OF BOARD, TIME LIMITATION.] All orders of the board, whether in connection with annexation, consolidation, incorporation or detachment shall be issued within two years from the date of the first hearing thereon provided that the time may be extended for a fixed additional period upon consent of all parties of record. Failure to so order shall be deemed to be an order denying the matter before the board. An appeal may be taken from such failure to so order in the same manner as an appeal from an order as provided in subdivision 2.

Subd. 2. [GROUNDS FOR APPEAL.] Any person aggrieved by any incorporation, annexation, detachment, or annexation detachment order of the board may appeal to the district court upon the following grounds:

- (a) That the board had no jurisdiction to act;
- (b) That the board exceeded its jurisdiction;
- (c) That the order of the board is arbitrary, fraudulent, capricious or oppressive or in unreasonable disregard of the best interests of the territory affected;
- (d) That the order is based upon an erroneous theory of law.

The appeal shall be taken in the district court in the county in which the majority of the area affected is located. The appeal shall not stay the effect of the order. *All notices and other documents shall be served on both the executive director and the attorney general's assistant assigned to the board.*

If the court shall determine that the action of the board involved is unlawful or unreasonable or is not warranted by the evidence in case an issue of fact is involved, the court may vacate or suspend the action of the board involved, in whole or in part, as the case may require, and thereupon the matter shall be remanded to the board for further action in conformity with the decision of the court.

To render a review of a board order effectual, the aggrieved person shall file with the clerk of the district court of the county wherein the majority of the area is located, within 30 days of such order, an application for review together with the grounds upon which the review is sought.

An appeal lies from the district court to the supreme court in accordance with the provisions of the rules of civil appellate procedure.

Sec. 31. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 414.09, is amended to read:

414.09 [UNIFORM PROCEDURES OF BOARD.] Subdivision 1. [HEARINGS.] Proceedings initiated by the submission of a petition, resolution, or official request of a public agency, an initiating document or by the board of its own motion shall come on for hearing within 30 to 120 days from receipt of the document by the board or from the date of board action. In any proceeding before the board and upon the request of any party, the board shall meet physically rather than by means of electronic media. The place of the hearing shall be in the county where a majority of the affected territory is situated, and shall be established for the convenience of the parties. The secretary executive director shall mail notice of the hearing to the following parties: the township or municipality presently governing the affected territory; any township or municipality abutting the affected territory; the county where the affected territory is situated; and each planning agency which has jurisdiction over the affected area. Proceedings initiated by the board of its own motion shall be set for hearing on a day at least 30 days after such mailed notice. The secretary executive director shall cause notice of the hearing to be published for two successive weeks in a legal newspaper of general circulation in the affected area.

When the board exercises its authority to change the boundaries of the affected area so as to increase the quantity of the land, the hearing shall be recessed and reconvened upon two weeks published notice in a legal newspaper of general circulation in the affected area.

Subd. 2. [TRANSMITTAL OF BOARD'S ORDER.] The ~~secretary executive director~~ shall cause copies of the board's order to be mailed to all parties entitled to mailed notice of hearing under subdivision 1, *the secretary of state, the department of revenue, the state demographer, individual property owners if initiated in that manner*, and any other party of record. If the order changes the boundaries of an existing municipality, or creates a new municipality, the secretary shall transmit copies of the order, the document by which the proceeding was initiated, where applicable, the notice of hearing and the proof of service and publication thereof, to the secretary of state and the auditor of the county where the affected territory is situated, for filing as a public record.

Subd. 3. [ELECTIONS OF MUNICIPAL OFFICERS.] An order approving an incorporation or consolidation pursuant to ~~sections 414.02, 414.021, or 414.041~~ *this chapter* shall set a date for this election of new municipal officers not less than 45 days nor more than 60 days after the issuance of such order. The board shall appoint an acting clerk for election purposes, at least three election judges who shall be residents of the new municipality, and shall designate polling places within the new municipality.

The acting clerk shall prepare the official election ballot. Affidavits of candidacy may be filed by any person eligible to hold municipal office not more than four weeks nor less than two weeks before the date designated by the board for the election. At least one week before the first day to file such affidavits the acting clerk shall publish a notice in a newspaper qualified as a medium of official publication and of general circulation within the new municipality stating the first and last dates on which such affidavits may be filed, the location of the clerk's office, the clerk's office hours, and the amount of the filing fee.

The acting clerk shall publish a notice of election in a newspaper qualified as a medium of official publication and of general circulation within the new municipality for two successive weeks immediately prior to the date designated by the board for the election. The election notice shall state the purpose, date, and polling places for the election, and shall state the time the polls shall be open, which time shall be at least five hours.

If the new municipality is a statutory city, the election shall be conducted in conformity with the requirements of the laws for conducting a statutory city election insofar as applicable. If the new municipality is a home rule charter city, The election shall be conducted in conformity with the charter and the laws for conducting city municipal elections insofar as applicable. Any person

eligible to vote at a township or municipal election within the area of the new municipality, is eligible to vote at such election.

Any excess in the expense of conducting the election over receipts from filing fees shall be a charge against the new municipality; any excess of receipts shall be deposited in the treasury of the new municipality.

Sec. 32. [REPEALER.] *Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 414.021; 414.032; 414.033, Subdivision 4; 414.034; and 414.068; are repealed.*

Sec. 33. [APPLICABILITY.] *The provisions of this act shall be applicable to all proceedings before the Minnesota municipal board initiated after the effective date of this act.*

Sec. 34. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] *This act is effective on the day following its final enactment."*

Amend the title as follows:

Strike lines 2 to 17 and insert:

"relating to local government; amending powers and duties of the Minnesota municipal board; regulating the incorporation, annexation, detachment, consolidation and boundary adjustments of certain local governmental units; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 414.01, Subdivisions 1, 2, 5, 7a, 8, 12, 14, and 15; 414.011, Subdivision 5, and by adding subdivisions; 414.02; 414.031; 414.033, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, and by adding a subdivision; 414.041; 414.06; 414.061, Subdivisions 1 and 4; 414.065; 414.067; 414.07; 414.09; and Chapter 414, by adding sections; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 414.021; 414.032; 414.033, Subdivision 4; 414.034; and 414.068."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted.
Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

H. F. No. 1114: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; creating a rebuttable presumption that certain transfers of property are intended to make persons eligible for medical or maintenance assistance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Chapter 256, by adding a section; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 256B.17.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 14, strike "three years" and insert "12 months"

Page 1, line 16, strike "256.12,"

Page 1, line 18, strike "this" and insert "maintenance or medical"

Page 1, line 21, strike "or to have"

Page 1, strike lines 22 and 23 except the period

Page 2, line 2, strike "medical" and insert "maintenance"

Page 2, line 2, strike "maintenance" and insert "medical"

Page 2, line 3, after the period insert "*Nothing herein shall be construed to create a presumption in any criminal prosecution.*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. McCutcheon from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which was referred

S. F. No. 1066: A bill for an act relating to taxation: providing for distribution of property taxes levied on certain electric utility facilities among certain governmental units.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. [DEFINITIONS.] Subdivision 1. For the purposes of sections 1 and 2 the following terms shall have the meanings given them in this section.

Subd. 2. "Electric utility" means a person, corporation or other legal entity operating equipment or facilities in this state for furnishing electric service to the public at retail or to its members.

Subd. 3. "Major electric generating facility" means a facility designed for operation at a capacity of 200 megawatts or more, capable of producing electrical energy for the purpose of transmission and distribution to a consumer.

Subd. 4. "Taxing district" means a county, city, town, school district, special district or other governmental entity permitted to levy ad valorem taxes.

Subd. 5. "Taxes" shall include payments made to taxing authorities in lieu of taxes by municipal power agencies pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 453.54, Subdivision 20.

Sec. 2. [TAX LEVIED BY LOCAL TAXING DISTRICTS ON MAJOR ELECTRIC GENERATING FACILITIES.] A taxing district having a major electric generating facility within its boundaries shall spread its levy on 100 percent of the assessed value of the land and structures used by the electric utility on the site. If the assessed value of the taxable attached machinery at the facility does not increase from its assessed value for the 1977 assessment year in subsequent years, the taxing district shall also spread its levy against 100 percent of the current taxable value of the attached machinery. If the assessed value of the taxable attached machinery at the facility does increase from the assessed value of the taxable attached machinery for the 1977 assessment year in subsequent years, the taxing district shall also spread its

levy on 100 percent of the assessed value of the taxable attached machinery for the 1977 assessment year and 20 percent of the subsequent net increase in the assessed value of the taxable attached machinery at that facility. The remainder of the subsequent net increase in the assessed value of the taxable attached machinery shall be exempt from ad valorem taxation.

Sec. 3. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] Sections 1 and 2 are effective for taxes levied in 1978, payable in 1979 and subsequent years."

Further, amend the title as follows:

Strike lines 2 to 5 and insert

"relating to taxation; exempting a portion of the increase in assessed value of major electric generating facilities from the property tax."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Willet from the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S. F. No. 1622: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; requiring a trout stamp; providing for disposition of the proceeds; appropriating funds; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 98.46, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 98.46, Subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. The commissioner of natural resources shall issue Minnesota sportsman licenses by March 1, 1978. The licenses shall be issued to residents only. The fee for licenses shall be \$9 if the angling license is for one person and \$12 if the angling license is a combination husband and wife license. These fees do not include the surcharge authorized pursuant to section 97.482, *the state trout stamp required by section 2 of this act*, nor the state waterfowl stamp required by section 97.4841.

The license shall authorize the licensee to:

- (1) Take small game;
- (2) Take fish by angling.

The game and fish subcommittee of the house of representatives and the fish and wildlife subcommittee of the senate shall study the feasibility of other combinations for sportsman's licenses prior to January 1, 1978.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 98.46, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2b. No person, resident or nonresident, required to have a fishing license, shall fish on waters designated as "trout waters" by the commissioner without having a special trout fishing stamp in his possession. Each stamp shall be validated by the signature of the licensee written across its face. The commissioner shall determine the form of the stamp and shall furnish and distribute stamps to county auditors for sale by them and their authorized subagents as prescribed by order of the commissioner. The commissioner shall encourage the purchase of stamps by persons who do not fish trout who are interested in trout stream improvement. People who are fishing on their own property shall not be required to possess a Minnesota trout fishing stamp. Trout fishing stamps shall be issued annually by the commissioner upon payment of a fee of \$5 and shall be valid from March 1 through the last day of the following February. The proceeds from the sale of trout fishing stamps shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the game and fish fund and are appropriated to the commissioner for use in trout hatchery operations and maintenance, stocking and restocking the designated "trout waters", acquisition of access to trout streams and in designated "trout waters" improvement.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 98.50, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. Any resident desiring to sell the licenses referred to in subdivision 1 may either purchase for cash or obtain on consignment license blanks from a county auditor in groups of not less than five non-resident, and ten resident license blanks. In addition to the basic license fee, he shall collect a fee for issuing each license in the amount of 75 cents for the license to take deer and for the sportsman license authorized in section 98.46, subdivision 2a, and 50 cents for all other licenses. The state migratory waterfowl stamp required by section 97.4841, and the state trout stamp required by section 2 of this act, shall be considered to be a "license" within the meaning of this subdivision except when such a state migratory waterfowl stamp and a small game license, or a state trout stamp and an individual angling license, or two state trout stamps and a combination husband and wife angling license are issued in the same transaction in which case the stamp shall be considered a part of the ~~small~~ game license and only one issuing fee shall be collected. In selling such licenses, he shall be deemed an agent of the county auditor and the commissioner, and he shall observe all rules and regulations promulgated by the commissioner for the accounting for and handling of such licenses.

The county auditor shall promptly deposit all moneys received from the sale of licenses with the county treasurer, and shall promptly transmit such reports as may be required by the commissioner, together with his warrant on the county treasurer for 100 percent of the surcharge imposed by section 97.482 plus 96 percent of the price to the licensee, exclusively of said surcharge and the issuing fee, for each license sold or consigned by him and subsequently sold to a licensee during the accounting period. The county auditor shall retain as his commission

four percent of all license fees, excluding issuing fees for licenses consigned to subagents. In addition, for licenses sold for cash directly to the licensee, the auditor shall collect the same issuing fee as a subagent. Unsold license blanks in the hands of any agent shall be redeemed by the commissioner if presented for redemption within the time prescribed by the commissioner therefor. Any license blanks not presented for redemption within the period prescribed shall be conclusively presumed to have been sold, and the agent possessing the same or to whom they are charged shall be accountable therefor. The commissioner shall collect the same issuing fee as a subagent for licenses sold directly through a license distribution center operated by the department of natural resources. The issuing fees so collected by the commissioner shall be credited to the game and fish fund.

Sec. 4. There is appropriated to the commissioner of natural resources from the game and fish fund the sum of \$1,250,000 for the period from March 1, 1979 to June 30, 1980 for use in trout hatchery operations and maintenance, stocking and restocking the designated "trout waters", and in designated "trout waters" improvement.

Sec. 5. This act is effective March 1, 1979."

Amend the title as follows:

Line 5, after "subdivision" insert "Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Sections 98.46, Subdivision 2a; and 98.50, Subdivision 5"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Tennessen from the Committee on Commerce to which was referred

S. F. No. 370: A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; establishing procedures for issuance of orders and removal of officers or directors in the event of violations of law or unsafe practices; providing penalties.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 9, strike "11" and insert "8"

Page 1, line 14, after "director," insert "trustee,"

Page 1, line 18, strike "8" and insert "5"

Page 2, line 1, after "bank," insert "savings bank, savings association,"

Page 2, line 4, strike "prorate company" and insert "prorating agency"

Page 3, line 9, after "directors," insert "trustees,"

Page 3, strike lines 21 to 32

Page 4, strike lines 1 to 19

Page 4, line 20, after "DIRECTORS" insert ", TRUSTEES"

Page 4, lines 23 and 29, after "director" insert ", trustee"

Page 5, lines 3, 7, and 12, after "director" insert ", trustee"

Page 5, line 22, after "director," insert "trustee,"

Page 5, after line 25, insert:

"Subd. 3. Whenever any director, trustee or officer of an institution, or other person participating in the conduct of the affairs of an institution, is convicted in any state or federal court of a felony involving dishonesty or breach of trust the commissioner may serve upon the director, trustee, officer, or other person a written notice of his intention to remove him from office or to prohibit his further participation in any manner in the conduct of the affairs of the institution."

Page 5, line 26, after "director," insert "trustee,"

Page 6, lines 3, 4, and 16, after "director," insert "trustee,"

Page 6, strike lines 22 to 32

Page 7, strike lines 1 to 32

Page 8, strike lines 1 to 32

Page 9, strike lines 1 to 5

Page 9, lines 6 and 7, after "DIRECTORS" insert "OR TRUSTEES"

Page 9, lines 8, 9, 10, and 13, after "directors" insert "or trustees"

Page 9, line 9, strike "11" and insert "8"

Page 9, lines 14, 15, and 17, after "directors" insert "or trustees"

Page 9, line 22, strike "11" and insert "8"

Page 10, lines 4 and 22, strike "11" and insert "8"

Page 10, line 25, after "director" insert ", trustee" in both cases

Page 10, line 28, after "director," insert "trustee,"

Page 10, line 29, strike "sections 4, 5, or 6" and insert "section 3"

Page 11, line 3, after "director" insert "or trustee"

Page 11, lines 4 and 15, after "director" insert ", trustee"

Page 11, line 8, strike "INFORMING GOVERNOR;"

Page 11, line 10, strike "11" and insert "8"

Page 11, line 11, after "mail" insert "to the last known address of the person or principal Minnesota office of the institution to whom service is directed"

Page 11, line 17, strike "11" and insert "8"

Page 11, after line 18, insert:

"Sec. 9. This act shall be effective the day following final enactment."

Renumber the sections and subdivisions

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, after "officers" insert ", trustees"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted.
Report adopted.

Mr. Willet from the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, to which was referred the following appointment as reported in the Journal for January 17, 1978:

WATER PLANNING BOARD CHAIRMAN

Thomas J. Kalitowski

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointment be confirmed.

Mr. Coleman moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Olson from the Committee on General Legislation and Veterans Affairs, to which were referred the following appointments as reported in the Journal for May 9, 1977:

BOARD OF THE ARTS

James Glazman

Philip Von Blon

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointments be confirmed.

Mr. Coleman moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Olson from the Committee on General Legislation and Veterans Affairs, to which were referred the following appointments as reported in the Journal for May 17, 1977:

BOARD OF THE ARTS

Luther Jones

Ron Libertus

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointments be confirmed.

Mr. Coleman moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Coleman from the Subcommittee on Bill Scheduling, to which were referred

S. F. Nos. 1607, 861, 1656, 1609, 1610, 1105, 1425, 1510, 1589 and 744 makes the following report:

That S. F. Nos. 1607, 861, 1656, 1609, 1610, 1425, 1105 and 744 be placed on the General Orders Calendar in the order indicated.

That at the request of the chief author S. F. No. 1589 be returned to the Committee on Local Government.

That S. F. No. 1510 is being retained by the Subcommittee pending further action.

That there were no other bills before the Subcommittee on which floor action was requested. Report adopted.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

S. F. Nos. 910, 1066 and 370 were read the second time and referred to the Subcommittee on Bill Scheduling of the Committee on Rules and Administration.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H. F. No. 1114 was read the second time and referred to the Subcommittee on Bill Scheduling of the Committee on Rules and Administration.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Hanson moved that the name of Mr. Lessard be added as co-author to S. F. No. 1425. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Moe moved that the name of Mr. Wegener be added as co-author to S. F. No. 1663. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Kleinbaum moved that the names of Messrs. Schrom and Dunn be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 1722. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Moe moved that the name of Mr. Johnson be added as co-author to S. F. No. 1727. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the name of Mr. Perpich be added as co-author to S. F. No. 1765. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Menning moved that the name of Mr. Sikorski be added as co-author to S. F. No. 1746. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Keefe, S. moved that the name of Mr. Schaaf be added as co-author to S. F. No. 1630. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Frederick moved that his name be stricken as co-author to S. F. No. 304. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Pillsbury moved that his name be stricken as co-author to S. F. No. 304. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stokowski, for Mr. Gearty, moved that the report from the Committee on Elections, reported January 26, 1978, pertaining to appointments, be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stokowski moved that the foregoing report be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

CONFIRMATION

Mr. Stokowski moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Elections, reported January 26, 1978, the Senate, having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointment of:

ETHICAL PRACTICES BOARD

Mary Jo Richardson, 2085 Palace Avenue, St. Paul, Ramsey County, effective July 1, 1977, for a term expiring January 1, 1979.

The motion prevailed. So the appointment was confirmed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, pertaining to appointments, be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the foregoing report be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

CONFIRMATION

Mr. Chenoweth moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, the Senate, having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointment of:

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL

Patrick W. Colbert, Jr., 10325 Nicollet Avenue South, Bloomington, Hennepin County, effective September 26, 1977, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1979.

The motion prevailed. So the appointment was confirmed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, per

taining to appointments, be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the foregoing report be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

CONFIRMATION

Mr. Chenoweth moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, the Senate, having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointments of:

STATE DESIGNER SELECTION BOARD

Mark Anderson, 10320 South Shore Drive, Plymouth, Hennepin County, effective January 3, 1977, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1980.

Cecil Tammen, 4234 Sylvia Lane North, Shoreview, Ramsey County, effective January 3, 1977, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1979.

The motion prevailed. So the appointments were confirmed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, pertaining to appointments, be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the foregoing report be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

CONFIRMATION

Mr. Chenoweth moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, the Senate having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointment of:

STATE DESIGNER SELECTION BOARD

David R. Conkey, 4360 Brookside Court, #205, Edina, Hennepin County, effective January 3, 1978, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1981.

The motion prevailed. So the appointment was confirmed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, pertaining to appointments, be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the foregoing report be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

CONFIRMATION

Mr. Chenoweth moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, the Senate, having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointment of:

STATE DESIGNER SELECTION BOARD

Karal Marling, 1920 South 1st Street, Minneapolis, Hennepin County, effective January 3, 1978, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1982.

The motion prevailed. So the appointment was confirmed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, pertaining to appointments, be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the foregoing report be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

CONFIRMATION

Mr. Chenoweth moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, the Senate, having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointment of:

STATE DESIGNER SELECTION BOARD

Lilly Merkel, P.O. Box 301, Red Wing, Goodhue County, effective April 23, 1977, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1979.

The motion prevailed. So the appointment was confirmed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, pertaining to appointments, be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chenoweth moved that the foregoing report be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

CONFIRMATION

Mr. Chenoweth moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Governmental Operations, reported January 26, 1978, the Senate, having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointments of:

MINNESOTA-WISCONSIN BOUNDARY AREA COMMISSION

Dr. John Borchert, 23239 St. Croix Trail, Scandia, Washington County, effective July 1, 1977, for a term expiring July 1, 1981.

Howard Munson, 502 Westdale, Winona, Winona County, effective April 15, 1977, for a term expiring July 1, 1977.

Howard Munson, 502 Westdale, Winona, Winona County, effective July 1, 1977, for a term expiring July 1, 1981.

Robert Burns, 2501 Hudson Road, P. O. 33427, St. Paul, Ramsey County, effective July 1, 1977, for a term expiring July 1, 1981.

Robert L. Nybo, Jr., 328 Main Street, Red Wing, Goodhue County, effective July 1, 1977, for a term expiring July 1, 1981.

The motion prevailed. So the appointments were confirmed.

THIRD READING OF SENATE BILLS

S. F. No. 1617: A bill for an act relating to evidence; eliminating the presumption of due care in negligence actions; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 602.04.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 54 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anderson	Engler	Knaak	Peterson	Spear
Ashbach	Frederick	Knutson	Pillsbury	Stokowski
Bang	Gearty	Laufenburger	Purfeerst	Strand
Benedict	Hanson	Lessard	Renneke	Stumpf
Borden	Hughes	Luther	Schaaf	Tennessee
Chenoweth	Humphrey	McCutcheon	Schmitz	Ueland, A.
Chmielewski	Johnson	Merriam	Schrom	Ulland, J.
Coleman	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Setzepfandt	Vega
Davies	Keefe, S.	Nichols	Sieloff	Wegener
Dieterich	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Sillens	Willet
Dunn	Kleinbaum	Penny	Salon	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 1612: A bill for an act relating to trusts; powers of trustees; permitting investment of trust assets in certain life insurance contracts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 501.66, Subdivision 6.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 52 and nays 1, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anderson	Engler	Knaak	Pillsbury	Strand
Ashbach	Frederick	Knutson	Purfeerst	Stumpf
Bang	Gearty	Laufenburger	Renneke	Tennessee
Benedict	Hanson	Lessard	Schmitz	Ueland, A.
Borden	Hughes	Luther	Schrom	Ulland, J.
Chenoweth	Humphrey	McCutcheon	Setzepfandt	Vega
Chmielewski	Johnson	Merriam	Sieloff	Wegener
Coleman	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Sillers	Willet
Davies	Keefe, S.	Nichols	Solon	
Dieterich	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Spear	
Dunn	Kleinbaum	Penny	Stokowski	

Mr. Peterson voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 1613: A bill for an act relating to courts; judges; removal due to mental or physical incapacity; amending Minnesota Statutes 1976, Section 490.16, Subdivision 5; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1976, Sections 490.04; 490.05; 490.06; 490.07; 490.08; and 490.09.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 53 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anderson	Engler	Knaak	Peterson	Stokowski
Ashbach	Frederick	Knutson	Pillsbury	Strand
Bang	Gearty	Laufenburger	Purfeerst	Stumpf
Benedict	Hanson	Lessard	Renneke	Tennessee
Borden	Hughes	Luther	Schmitz	Ueland, A.
Chenoweth	Humphrey	McCutcheon	Schrom	Ulland, J.
Chmielewski	Johnson	Merriam	Setzepfandt	Vega
Coleman	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Sieloff	Wegener
Davies	Keefe, S.	Nichols	Sillers	Willet
Dieterich	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Solon	
Dunn	Kleinbaum	Penny	Spear	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 1614: A bill for an act relating to courts; board on judicial standards; providing for appointment of an executive secretary by the board; amending Minnesota Statutes, 1977 Supplement, Section 490.15, Subdivision 1.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 51 and nays 2, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anderson	Borden	Davies	Frederick	Humphrey
Ashbach	Chenoweth	Dieterich	Gearty	Johnson
Bang	Chmielewski	Dunn	Hanson	Keefe, J.
Benedict	Coleman	Engler	Hughes	Keefe, S.

Kirchner	McCutcheon	Purfearst	Spear	Vega
Kleinbaum	Nelson	Renneke	Stokowski	Wegener
Knaak	Nichols	Schmitz	Strand	Willet
Knutson	Ogdahl	Setzepfandt	Stumpf	
Laufenburger	Penny	Sieloff	Tennessen	
Lessard	Peterson	Sillers	Ueland, A.	
Luther	Pillsbury	Solon	Ulland, J.	

Messrs. Merriam and Schrom voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Coleman moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 10:00 o'clock a.m., Thursday, February 2, 1978. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate